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The unique chalk caves
An ancient Russian village Holky is situated not far from the town of  Chernyanka, Belgorod region. It is 15 kilometres from the town of  Novy Oskol – the place where the Holky river falls into the Oskol river. It is supposed that the village is named after an ancient river Holok. Now Holky is situated on the picturesque bank of the Oskol River. The exact date of its foundation is unknown. It is supposed, it was founded in the seventeenth century. The village and the place, where it is situated, has an ancient and rich history.
For many years village Holky has attracted historians’ attention. As per archeologists’ research about thousands years B.C. a fortified settlement of primitive men existed at the place of the village. The first expedition to Holky place was organized in 1958. It was leaded by professor S.A. Pletnyova. For many years they have studied the history of  Holky place. In her report “About south-eastern outskirts of  Russian land in per mongolian time” she gave the detailed characteristic of  Holky place. She said that the village was a strong fortress. It was built in the tradition of saltovo-mayatskikh villages. Its rulers continued to erect ramparts and fortifications. Perhaps Holky was the frontier fortress of Chernigov’s county on the south-east of  Kursk district.


The subsequent investigation of  Holky place was performed in 1983 by professor G.E. Afanasyev. So it was established that Holky was an ancient Russian village. It was constructed for the defence of south-eastern  border of our motherland.


According to the legend, Holky  was connected with one of the heroic pages of  Russian history. S.A. Pletnyova proved that just here in Holky  place in 1185 the Prince Igor with his fighting squards was awaiting for his brother Vsevolod to set out against Polovtsy. This historical fact is well known due to the monumental Old Russian poetry “The Song of  Igor’s Campaign ”. On the memorable place the chapel in honour of Saint Prince Vladimir was erected. From the history we know about the tragic end of the trip. Almost all Russian troops were defeated, Prince Igor was captivated. He could escape from the captivity in two years. But we are proud of the fact that this event, the defence of our Motherland, is connected with Belgorod region.
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 At a great sacrifice the Soviet people defended their freedom in the struggle against fascist Germany. Among them more than 300 inhabitants of Holky, 130 of them died as heroes.


The main sign of Holky is underground monastery with its mystery chalk caves. It is the symbol of history and architecture of the beginning of the seventeenth century. The history of monastery’s foundation is closely connected with the history of  Holky.


Holkov – Tsarev – Nicolaevsky or Trinity Male Monastery was founded in 1620 by the monk Gelasy, who became its first Father Superior. But the background of  Holky’s chalk caves is still a mystery. Up till now there is no conformity of scientists’ opinion on the origion of the caves: whether they were digged out by monks or they had existed before the appearance of the Monastery. But it is exactly known that the caves were specially destined for lodging.
[image: image3.jpg]



There were some weapons in Monastery because of the Tatar’s invasion. There was a guard strength named “Zhestovaya ostrozhka” on the highest hills. It served for the defence of southern and south-eastern borders of Russian State from the Tatar’s invasion.

 The Underground monastery in Holky had been existed during 144 years. In 1764 on the Decree of Empress Ekaterina the Second the Monastery was abolished “because of monk’s imprudent behavior”. 50 years later, after the abolishment of Monastery, they tried to reorganized previous monasteries and open new. So it was an attempt to reopen Underground monastery in Holky, but it was no success. And they began to forget about caves, nobody knew the exact entrance into them.


Vasylchikov who served there from 1909 to 1915 noticed a cutting cross on one of the hills. Later he learned that there might be a monastery and he decided to organize excavations. Vyacheslav Aleksandrovich was supported by physician Ivanitsky, who practiced in Chernyanka. Old people, who remembered some facts, helped them very much. The work lasted for about a year and a half. As a result of that work the lower entrance was opened, the chalk crosses were cut out on the walls, the chapel was connected with the upper church and it became available for the divine services in both churches at the same time.

In 1990 a young generation took part in this work. Vasily Dmitriyevich [image: image4.jpg]


 Ponomaryov, a komsomol leader, who was born in Holky, was an initiator. Thanks to support of many people the great monument of Russian history was overhauled. And on the 14th of October Holky’s caves were reopened for the visitors.


Nowadays they attract tourists’ attention not only from Belgorod region but from other regions as well. They come here not only to see the unique chalk caves but first of all they come for strengthening of their peace of mind and for prayer in this saint place.    
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